
MINUTES 

MONTANA HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES 
51st LEGISLATURE - REGULAR SESSION 

COMMITTEE ON TAXATION 

Call to Order: By Chairman Harrington, on March 29, 1989, at 
8:00 a.m. 

ROLL CALL 

Members Present: 17 

Members Excused: None 

Members Absent: 1 

Staff Present: Greg Petesch, Legislative Council 

Announcements/Discussion: None. 

HEARING ON HOUSE BILL 791 

Presentation and Opening Statement by Sponsor: 

Rep. Jack Ramirez, District 87, stated HB 791 is to assist 
Big Sky Airlines which is currently in a Chapter 11 
reorganization. He said the airline cannot restructure its 
tax liability. Rep. Ramirez stated the indebtedness amount 
was $800,000.00 dating back to 1983 •. He said the airline 
had paid their taxes for November of 1987 plus May and 
November of 1988. He stated without the assistance, the 
airline will be unable to stay in business. 

Testifying Proponents and Who They Represent: 

Jayce Norsworthy, President, Big Sky Airlines 
Jim Van Arsdale, Mayor, Billings 

Proponent Testimony: 

Jayce Norsworthy stated Big Sky was an eleven year old 
incorporated Montana airline that serves seventeen cities, 
two in North Dakota, one in Washington and the balance in 
Montana. He said the airline had experienced a profit in 
only two of their eleven years of operation. Mr. Norsworthy 
stated the airline did not owe $800,000.00 in back taxes. 
He said this figure is taxes and airport fees combined. Mr. 
Norsworthy stated only 12 people had been terminated from 
the airline and his employees had asked to take a 15% cut in 
salary. He said they must devise a plan to pay all of the 
taxes owed within 72 months after the date of assessment. 
Mr. Norsworthy stated currently the company owes 
approximately $355,000.00 in delinquent taxes plus penalty 



HOUSE COMMITTEE ON TAXATION 
March 29, 1989 

Page 2 of 7 

and interest. He said this bill would provide $175,000.00 
in tax relief. He stated this amount is the tax preceding 
the year 1986. Mr. Norsworthy said the airline has a 
$5,000,000.00 payroll annually and 90% of their employees 
are in the state of Montana. He said the assistance was 
badly needed in order for the airline to survive. He 
thanked the committee for their time. 

Jim Van Arsdale stated he supported the airline. 
is very necessary to link many small towns in the 
stated the airline is also needed for the economy 
emergency travel. He urged support of the bill. 

Testifying Opponents and Who They Represent: 

Gordon Morris, Montana Association of Counties 

Opponent Testimony: 

He said it 
state. He 
and for 

Gordon Morris stated he had worked with Mr. Norsworthy for 
ten months to try to resolve the airline's problems. He 
said the bill would send the wrong message in regard to 
delinquent taxes. Mr. Morris suggested giving county 
commissioners the authority to look at the merits of the 
public interest involved and make a local decision to waive 
the tax funds. He stated this is a difficult issue and the 
air services are essential but he suggested that Rep. 
Ramirez or the airline should have contacted his office 
since they had previously worked on Big Sky's problems. 

Questions From Committee Members: Rep. Rehberg asked Mr. Morris 
about the larger counties holding the smaller ones hostage 
because they would not need the airline as much as the 
smaller counties. Mr. Morris stated he did not think so 
since all of the counties have been working together to try 
to resolve this problem. 

Rep. Driscoll asked Mr. Norsworthy if any other creditors 
had agreed to take less than the full value of the debts 
owed. Mr. Norsworthy stated they had not so far. He said 
they had the right to devise a plan for payment that all of 
the creditors will vote on and if anyone agrees, then the 
bankruptcy judge could rule they had accepted the plan. He 
stated if that included any agreement to take less than full 
value, then that would be the final agreement. Rep. 
Driscoll then asked if the airline would not ask the 
creditors to take less in their plan. Mr. Norsworthy stated 
they would. Rep. Driscoll then asked Mr. Van Arsdale if the 
city of Billings had agreed to take less than full value on 
the landing fees. Mr. Van Arsdale said he had not discussed 
this with the city council so he could not answer. Rep. 
Driscoll asked if this would be brought before the council 
to which Mr. Van Arsdale replied he hoped so. 

Rep. Elliott asked Mr. Norsworthy if he could tell him the 



HOUSE COMMITTEE ON TAXATION 
March 29, 1989 

Page 3 of 7 

viability of airlines in regard to size. Mr. Norsworthy 
stated the business was very fragile particularly in a 
sparsely populated area. 

Mr. Norsworthy asked permission to make a comment. Chairman 
Harrington concurred. Mr. Norsworthy stated he wished to 
apologize to Mr. Morris for failing to notify him since they 
had worked together to try to resolve the airlines tax 
difficulties. He said he just learned of the requirement to 
pay the taxes last week. He said he immediately notified 
Rep. Ramirez and was surprised that the hearing was held so 
soon. He stated he did not expect such quick action. 

Rep. Hoffman asked Rep. Ramirez if there should not be a 
sunset clause in the bill. Rep. Ramirez stated he had no 
objection to that. Chairman Harrington commented the bill 
is effective on the date it passes and sunsets itself. 

Rep. Good asked Rep. Ramirez if he would comment on Mr. 
Morris's alternative plan giving the county commissioners 
additional authority. Rep. Ramirez stated he thought that 
would be fine in a broader context but the airline needs 
this assistance immediately. 

Closing by Sponsor: Rep. Ramirez stated he did not intend to 
exclude Mr. Morris. He said he did not see other 
alternatives at the present time since the situation needed 
immediate attention. 

DISPOSITION OF HOUSE BILL 791 

Motion: DO PASS by Rep. Rehberg. 

Discussion: Rep. Driscoll stated if the airline goes into 
Chapter 7 bankruptcy, there would be much less tax collected 
plus the airline service is needed. Chairman Harrington 
agreed stating it is essential to continue the air service. 

Amendments, Discussion, and Votes: None. 

Recommendation and Vote: Motion CARRIED by a 14 to 3 voice vote 
with Reps. Stang, Elliott and O'Keefe voting no. 

HEARING ON SENATE BILL 137 

Presentation and Opening Statement by Sponsor: 

Senator Dennis Nathe, District 10, stated under federal 
income tax law, a corporation can elect to carry their 
losses backward or forward but under the state income tax 
laws, a corporation can only carry their losses back and 
then forward. He said under SB 137, a corporation has the 
option to carry their losses either backward or forward on 
the state income tax. 



HOUSE COMMITTEE ON TAXATION 
March 29, 1989 

Page 4 of 7 

Testifying Proponents and Who They Represent: 

Tom Harrison, Montana Society of CPAs 
Kay Foster, Billings Chamber of Commerce 

Proponent Testimony: 

Tom Harrison stated the bill will bring the state income tax 
in line with the federal in regard to the carry forward or 
backward of losses.. He said this will save the tax preparer 
time and make the taxes much simpler. He urged support of 
the bill. 

Kay Foster urged support of the bill. 

Testifying Opponents and Who They Represent: 

None. 

Opponent Testimony: 

None. 

Questions From Committee Members: None. 

Closing by Sponsor: Senator Nathe stated the bill is just to 
eliminate costly mistakes in this respect. 

DISPOSITION OF SENATE BILL 137 

Motion: None. 

Discussion: None. 

Amendments, Discussion, and Votes: None. 

Recommendation and Vote: None. Action will be taken at a later 
date. 

HEARING ON SENATE BILL 253 

Presentation and Opening Statement by Sponsor: 

Senator Sam Hofman, District 38, stated this bill was a 
matter of fairness and provides a special fuel tax exemption 
for private schools. He said this exempts their diesel 
operated school buses from taxation. He stated there is no 
fiscal impact. 

Testifying Proponents and Who They Represent: 

Norse Nichols, Administrator, Motor Fuels Tax Division, 



Department of Revenue 

Proponent Testimony: 

HOUSE COMMITTEE ON TAXATION 
March 29, 1989 

Page 5 of 7 

Norse Nichols stated the department supports the bill but 
their attorneys were concerned with the broadness of the 
school related purposes in the bill. He submitted proposed 
amendments and a photocopy of the particular section of the 
Montana code which defines private schools as those 
qualified to provide elementary and high school education. 
(Exhibits 1 and 2). 

Testifying Opponents and Who They Represent: 

None. 

Opponent Testimony: 

None. 

Questions From Committee Members: Rep. Cohen asked Mr. Nichols 
if private contractors were exempt from the tax. Mr. 
Nichols replied they were not. Rep. Cohen then asked 
Senator Hofman if this was a church school. Sen. Hofman 
replied this was a private school and had no connection with 
any church. 

Rep. Schye asked Sen. Hofman about the amendments and if he 
agreed with them. The senator replied he had no problem 
with them at all. 

Closing by Sponsor: Sen. Hofman stated this was primarily a 
fairness issue. He said he did not object to the amendments 
and he assured the committee the private school was not 
church related in any way. 

DISPOSITION OF SENATE BILL 253 

Motion: DO PASS by Rep. Rehberg. Rep. Schye moved the 
amendment. 

Discussion: Rep. Elliott stated Mr. Nichols had informed him the 
schools do pay tax on gasoline. He said the bill applies 
only to diesel and this would be an exemption for this 
school only. Rep. Schye then asked Mr. Nichols about the 
diesel buses for other schools. Mr. Nichols stated they 
were already exempt. Rep. Cohen stated there were other 
private schools and public schools that run buses and they 
pay taxes. He stated his major point of opposition to the 
bill was that private schools remove support from public 
schools. Rep. Good objected to this statement saying she 
sent her schools to private school and she paid taxes for 
public schools. 



HOUSE COMMITTEE ON TAXATION 
March 29, 1989 

Page 6 of 7 

Amendments, Discussion, and votes: None. 

Recommendation and Vote: At this point, Rep. Rehberg withdrew 
his motion to DO PASS since the committee had to return to 
hearings on additional bills. Action will be taken at a 
later date. 

HEARING ON SENATE BILL 139 

Presentation and Opening Statement by Sponsor: 

Senator Tom Hager, District 48, stated the bill was 
introduced at the request of the Yellowstone County 
Recorder. He said a bill was passed two years ago allowing 
the sale of delinquent property which had no buildings on 
it. He said the bill allowed redemption of the property 
after eighteen months. Sen. Hager said under SB 139, the 
redemption time would have been 36 months but he received 
many objections from the counties so the time will be 24 
months. 

Testifying Proponents and Who They Represent: 

Cort Harrington, Montana Association of Clerks and 
Recorders 

Proponent Testimony: 

Cort Harrington stated the concern with retaining the 36 
month time period related to undeveloped land that could 
incurr too large a delinquency and thus be unable to sell 
the land for the taxes due. He said the 24 month period was 
a compromise. 

Testifying Opponents and Who They Represent: 

None. 

Opponent Testimony: 

None. 

Questions From Committee Members: None. 

Closing by Sponsor: Senator Hager made no further comment. 

DISPOSITION OF SENATE BILL 139 

Motion: DO PASS by Rep. O'Keefe. 

Discussion: None. 

Amendments, Discussion, and Votes: None. 



HOUSE COMMITTEE ON TAXATION 
March 29, 1989 

Page 7 of 7 

Recommendation and Vote: Motion CARRIED by a unanimous voice 
vote. 

ADJOURNMENT 

Adjournment At: 8:55 a.m. 

DH/1j 

7015.min 



DAILY ROLL CALL 

TAXATION 

51st LEGISLATIVE SESSION 

COMMITTEE 

1989 

Da te March 4J.L. 1989 __ _ 

~------------------------------- ------~ -- -----------------------
NAME PRES T ABSENT EXCUSED 
Harrington, Dan, Chairman / 

Ream, Bob, Vice Chairman r/ 

Cohen, Ben 1/ 
Driscoll, Jerry V/ 
Eliott, Jim V 
Koehnke, Francis ~ 
O'Keefe, Mark VI 
Raney, Bob .;( 
Schye, Ted v/ 
Stang, Barry 1'; 
Ellison, Orval V 
Giacometto, Leo t 
Gilbert, Bob J, 
Good, Susan V/; 
Hanson, Marian I: 
Hoffman, Robert " Patterson, John ; v' 
Rehberg, Dennis ./ 

CS-30 



j 
I 

I 
i 
i 

STANDING C01~ITTEE REPORT 

March 29, 1989 

Page 1 of 1 

Hr. Speaker: We, the committee on Taxation report that HOUSE 

BILL 791 (first reading copy -- white) do pass • 

Signed: 
/...... -A/~, r,--.. 
/, / - .... ' .,( 
"'l ,i -' I .' _/ ' . 

Dan Harring'ton; Cbai an ' 

700855SC.HBV 



',' . ,. . 

STANDING COMMITTEE REPORT 

March 29, 1989 

Page 1 of 1 

Mr. Speaker: We, the committee on Taxation report that SENATE 

BILL 139 (third reading copy -- blue) be concurred in • 

Signed: 

1/ //~/ .' / 
'Ii' I

; ~~~, HC~n~'~~;irm~n 
[REP. O'KEEFE WILL CARRY THIS BILL ON THE HOUSE FLOOR} 

700856SC.HBV 



~~~:'kj 1L f7 
#:~~~ 

Amend line 11 on page 2 by adding the following after the word purpOA-

es. 

For the purposes of this section private schools are defined as those 

which are Qualified to provide elementary and high school education 

pursuant to section 20-5-109-140, MeA. 



;' r 
~
.
 
~
 

) 

.• 1. ,
(
)
I
l
l
 

,;
:
 tl~ 

'J
1

.1
l
l
l
l
l
:
:
.1

., .'!I b:" 
~,j)!l 

prcl' 
'?d t~t.,: ~ Ja.(: ~, 

'rl."" affe~'Hr. 
. r~ 

,ild is 
a 

m
em

ber or the Indian 
reservation on w

hich such child resides. 
: r 

hen such a prohibition exists, the trustees o
f any district shall have the 

authority to accept from
 

the tribal council o
r other governing body o

f the 
Indian tribe or the Indian reservation authorization to enforce the com

pulsory 
attendance provisions o

f this title and com
pel the school attendance o

f the 
dian children belonging to the tribe or residing on the reservation. 

H
istory: 

E
n. 75-6309 by S

ec. 122, C
h. 5, L

 
1971; R

.C
.M

. 1947, 75-6309(part). 
I'088-R

eferences 
C

ooperative 
agreem

ents w
ith 

Indian 
tribes, 

'tle 18. ch. 11. 

0
-5

-1
0

9
. 

N
o

n
p

u
b

lic school re
q

u
ire

m
e
n

ts fo
r co

m
p

u
lso

ry
 en

ro
ll

m
en

t ex
em

p
tio

n
. T

o
' qualify its students for exem

ption from
 

com
pU

lsory 
enrollm

ent under 20-5-102, a nonpU
blic or hom

e school shaU
: 

(I) 
m

aintain records on pupil attendance an
d

 disease im
m

unization and 
m

ake such records available to the county su
p

erin
ten

d
en

t o
f schools on 

request; 

(2) 
provide at least 

180 days of pupil in
stru

ctio
n

 or the equivalent in 
accordance w

ith 20-1-301 and 20-1-302: 

(3) 
be housed in a building th

at com
plies w

ith applicable local health and 
safety regulations; 

(4) 
provide an

 organized course of study th
at includes instruction in the 

subjects required o
f pU

blic schools as a basic instructional program
 pursuant 

to 20-7-111; and 

(5) 
in th

e case 
o

f hom
e schools, 

notify th
e C

ounty su
p

erin
ten

d
en

t o
f 

schools o
f the student's attendance at the school. 

H
istory: 

E
n. Sec. 2, C

h. 355, L
 

1983. 
C

l"088-R
eferenC

le8 
D

isease im
m

unization, T
itle 20, ch. 5, part 4. 

School enrollm
ent P

rocedures to aid identifi
cation o

f m
issing children, 44-2-511. 

B
uilding codes an

d
 standards, T

itle 50, ch. 60. 

P
art 2 

D
u

tie
s -

S
uspenS

ion a
n

d
 E

xp
u

lsio
n

 
P

a
rt C

ro
ss-R

eferen
ces 

U
niversity stu

d
en

ts -
qualifications an

d
 

rights, T
itle 20, ch. 25, p

art 5. 

2
0

-5
-2

0
1

. 
D

u
ties an

d
 san

ctio
n

s. (1) A
ny pupil shall: 

(a) 
com

ply w
ith the policies of the trustees and the rules o

f the school 
w

hich he attends; 

(b) 
pursue the required course of instruction; 

(c) 
subm

it to the authority of the teachers, principal, and district superin
tendent o

f the district; and 

(d) 
be subject to the control and authO

rity o
f the teachers, P

rincipal, and 
district superintendent w

hile he is in school or on school prem
ises, on his w

ay 
to and from

 school, or during his interm
ission or recess. 

(2) 
A

ny pupil w
ho continually and w

illfully disobeys th
e provisions o

f this 
section, show

s open defiance of the authority vested in school personnel by 

'4~' 
"
.
,
 •• ~;iaC(;;" 

0
1

 (Julnages any sC
""u, 

"',: ....• liO
i b .. 

-
i.

,
,
' 

Ire, ~qui' .. :~.lt. lI"'~~''''' be1<r:'I""g U
F"""'" di~~·,~'\m or ~"T1S ~,,.tJ~Tel 

harm
 another person or his property shall be liable for punisfillJtalt, 

sion, or expulsion under the provisions of this title. W
hen a pupil dl 

dam
ages school property, as defihed above, his parent or guardian sha 

ble for the cost o
f repair or replacem

ent upon the com
plaint o

f the 
principal, superintendent, or any trustee and the proof of such dam

agl 
(3) 

In addition to the sanctions prescribed in this section, the trl 
a high school district m

ay deny a high school pupil the honor of p
art 

in the graduation exercise or exclude a high school pupil from
 part 

in school activities. S
uch action shall n

o
t be taken until th

e inc 
infraction causing such consideration has been investigated and the 
have determ

ined th
at th

e high school pupil w
as involved in

 such in 
infraction. 

H
istory: 

E
n. 75-6310 by S

ec. 123, C
h. 5, L

 
1971; R

.C
.M

. 1947, 75-6310. 

C
ross-R

eferences 
L

iability o
f p

aren
t for property 

P
enalty for disturbance o

f school, 20-1-206. 
m

inor, 40-6-237,40-6-238. 
P

ow
er of teach

er o
r p

rin
cip

al over pupils, 
20-4-302, 20-4-402, 20-4-403. 

2
0

-5
-2

0
2

. 
S

u
sp

en
sio

n
 

a
n

d
 

ex
p

u
lsio

n
. 

A
s 

provided 
in 

20-4-402, and 20-4-403, any pupil m
ay be suspended by a teacher, S

t 

dent, or principal. T
h

e trustees o
f the district shall adopt a policy de 

authority and procedure to be used by a teacher, superintendent, 01' 
in suspending a 

pupil an
d

 to 
define the circum

stances and proc· 
w

hich the trustees m
ay expel a pupil. E

xpulsion shall be a disciplin 
available only to th

e trustees. 
H

istory: 
E

n. 75-6311 
by Sec. 1

l4
, C

b. 5, L
 

1971; R
.C

.M
. 1947, 75-6311; am

d. 
135. L

 
1981. 

2
0

-5
-2

0
3

. 
S

ecret o
rg

an
izatio

n
 p

ro
h

ib
ited

. (1) It shall be U
J 

any pupil to participate in
 or be a m

em
ber of any secret fratem

it 
secret organization th

at is in
 any degree a school organization. It 

be unlaw
ful for any pupil or other person to solicit any pupil to jO

il 
prohibited secret fraternity or other secret organization. 

(2) 
A

ny person violating th
e provisions of this section shall b 

a m
isdem

eanor and, if convicted by a court of com
petent jurisdi( 

be fined n
o

t less than. $5 o
r m

ore th
an

 $25 for each violation. 
H

istory: 
E

n. 75-6312 by S
ec. 125, C

h. 5, L
 

1971; R
.c.M

. 1947, 75-6312. 

P
a

rt 3 
A

tte
n

d
a

n
ce

 O
u

tsid
e

 S
ch

o
o

l D
istrict 

P
a
rt C

rou-R
eC

erenee8 
R

ules for determ
ining residence. 1-1-215. 

D
uty o

f tru
stees to

 provide tl 
20-10-121. 

2
0

-5
-3

0
1

. 
E

lem
en

tary
 tu

itio
n

 w
ith

 m
an

d
ato

ry
 ap

p
ro

v
( 

child m
ay be enrolled in

 an
d

 attend an
 elem

entary school outside 
m

entary district in
 w

hich he resides w
hen such elem

entary scho( 
in

: (a) 
any other district of th

e county of his residence; 



VISITORS' REGlSTER 

HOUSE TAXATION COMMITTEE 
----~~~~~--------------

BILL NO. DATE March 29, 1989 

SPONSOR Rep • .Jack Ramirez 

-----------------------------~------------------------ --------_. -------
NAME (please print) RESIDENCE SUPPORT OPPOSE 

~rv~ /J1~. /J .-
~v?j~a~>- ct;~~I~ V--' 

t / /0 tfI 

( 

l-

IF YOU CARE TO WRITE COMMENTS, ASK SECRETARY FOR WITNESS STATEMENT FORM. 

PLEASE LEAVE PREPARED STATEMENT WITH SECRETARY. 

CS-33 



VISITORS' REGISTER 

HOUSE TAXATION COMMITTEE 
~----~--------------------

DILL NO. DATE March 29, 1989 

Sen. Dennis Nathe SPONSOR ____________________ ___ 

-----------------------------~------------------------~----------------
NAME (please print) RESIDENCE SUPPORT OPPOSE 

IF YOU CARE TO WRITE COMMENTS, ASK SECRETARY FOR WITNESS STATEMENT FORM. 

PLEASE LEAVE PREPARED STATEMENT WITH SECRETARY. 

CS-J3 



VISITORS' REGISTER 

HOUSE TAXATION COMMITTEE -----------------------------
BILL NO. DATE March 29, 1989 

SPONSOR __ ~S~e~n~.~T~o~m~H~a~g~e~r ____ __ 

------------------------------------------------------~-------- -------
NAME (please print) RESIDENCE SUPPORT OPPOSE 

------------------~------t---------------------_r------_t-----.--

IF YOU CARE TO WRITE COMMENTS, ASK SECRETARY FOR WITNESS STATEMENT FORM. 

PLEASE LEAVE PREPARED STATEMENT WITH SECRETARY. 

CS-33 




